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STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO. 15-2950R
TO BE OPENED: 9/20/2014
TITLE: SMARTER BALANCED TEST ADMINISTRATION
ADDENDUM NO. 2
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

There is a correction to the Schedule of Events listed on page 4. The contract start date should read September 15, 2014.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 2
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP #15-2950R 

	1. 
	16
	3.2.1
	Q.
“The contractor must commit to receiving certification of their test delivery system from Smarter Balanced.”

Does the state anticipate the Smarter Balanced certification process will remain a requirement or will the delay in

the steps of certification change this as a requirement? 
A.
Smarter Balanced has replaced the “Certification” process with an “Implementation Readiness” process that

will enable the contractor to demonstrate to OPI their readiness to administer the Smarter Balanced assessments

according to specifications.  OPI expects the contractor to be able to meet this requirement.

	2. 
	17
	3.2.2
	Q.
Alternate Test Delivery Platform:  “Any proposal to use an alternative platform would also have to take into

account Montana schools’ field test experience with a particular platform and devices and not require something

new and different in the schools without sufficient justification.”  The statement sounds as if Montana is limiting
the platform selection to the one used in the field test.  Is this the case?
A.  Not necessarily.  Montana seeks a system that has the capacity to deliver the operational test accurately and efficiently and be recognizable to Montana educators.  A system that can provide both of the above and streamline the process for Montana educators would be valuable.  If proposing an alternate test delivery platform, the contractor’s response should include a rationale for its use.

	3. 
	41
	5
	Q.
Cost Proposal – The state’s budgeted amount for any one year is $2.4 million and the contract is for a five year period, yet the entire project must not exceed 6.75 million.  Please clarify that these are the correct numbers.
A.
Yes, they are the correct numbers.  Start up costs for early years and maintaining the system costs after the initial years were taken into consideration when determining the costs.

	4. 
	28-29
	3.10
	Q.
Will OPI provide the contractor with estimates of the number of paper-pencil tests to be administered in Year 1?
A.
Please see the answer for question #26.  


	5. 
	28-29
	3.10
	Q.
Will OPI provide the contractor with estimates of the number of braille and large-print tests to be administered in Year 1?
A.
Please see the answer for question #26.

	6. 
	23
	3.4.3 

ELA
	Q.
The RFP states: “Even though training is at the task-model level, qualification will occur on an item-by-item basis for all ELA hand-scored item types, and Smarter Balanced will provide qualification and validation sets for each item in ELA. For those item types where raters were trained by grade span, raters will qualify on each item within a specific grade.”
Is the requirement to qualify on each item rather than item type a Smarter Balanced requirement or is it a Montana specific requirement?

A.
This is a Smarter requirement. 

	7. 
	23
	3.4.3

ELA
	Q.
Will the State consider qualification sets consisting of a mix of the items for an item type in a grade/grade span. 
A.
In ELA, it is expected that qualification will still occur at the item level. 

	8. 
	22
	3.4.3

Training Materials
	Q.
It is our understanding that Smarter Balanced will provide training materials to include training sets and qualification sets by item type.  Does Montana expect additional training materials to be developed on an item-by-item basis?

A.
In ELA, even though training is at the task-model level, qualification will occur on an item-by-item basis for all ELA hand-scored item types, and Smarter Balanced will provide qualification and validation sets for each item in ELA. For those item types where raters were trained by grade span, raters will qualify on each item within a specific grade.  In order to score mathematics items, raters will receive training and will qualify on task models for almost all items. For Mathematics, Smarter Balanced will provide anchors and training sets for the task models. Smarter Balanced will provide item-specific rubrics and item-specific validation sets for all Mathematics items.



	9. 
	24
	3.4.4
	Q.
The RFP requests a description of processes for handling “responses in languages other than English.” What additional languages should vendors expect? Please provide approximate n-counts for the number of responses in each language that vendors should expect.
A.  Currently, the state expects all responses to be in English; however, should our population demographics change drastically over the course of the contract, at this time, we request only a description of the contractor’s processes for handling special cases that fall outside of the normal scoring process, including  responses in languages other than English. 

	10. 
	25
	3.7
	Q.
Can OPI advise on how many copies per student for the individual student-level report they expect the vendor to produce and ship?

A.
Currently we print one and also provide pdf copies on a secure site for the schools.  


	11. 
	27-28
	3.9
	Q.
When is the first administration of the interim?

A.
November 2014

	12. 
	28
	3.10
	Q.
In order for the cost to be consistent across all vendors, will OPI be able to advice on the anticipated n-count for students that will require paper-and-pencil test administrations?

A.
Yes.  Approximately100.

	13. 
	28
	3.10
	Q.
The RFP states: “For informational purposes, offerors shall give a cost for per student for English language arts literacy, and mathematics assessment. Offerors shall place this cost in Section 5 but it will not affect the scoring process.” Please indicate where in the cost proposal vendors should include this information.

A.
Please use a table similar to the one for 3.11.   

	14. 
	28
	3.10
	Q.
RFP requests two surveys in this section – a student survey and an administrator and coordinator survey. Please provide additional information about these surveys.

A.
The answer booklet must contain space for students to responds to survey questions generated by OPI and for use by OPI.  Schools will download and print the student survey.  The administrator and coordinator survey may be a computer-administered survey.  The contractor can propose a method for administering those surveys. The contractor will be responsible for tabulating the results of all surveys and providing the survey data and results to OPI. In recent years, no surveys have been developed.  

	15. 
	29
	3.10
	Q.
There is language stating that vendors will deliver paper-and-pencil versions as “consumable, integrated test and answer booklets,” and the overview references separate test book and answer booklets. Please provide guidance if vendors need to quote a scannable test book for all grades, or a separate non-scannable test book with answer booklets.

A.
Based on current plans, the paper and pencil version of the Smarter Balanced Assessment will be delivered as a stand-alone test book for each response booklet’s grade and content area. Within a grade, the test books and response booklets will be separate for each content area. Students will respond in response booklets in each grade and content area, and these booklets will be returned to vendors for scanning, scoring, and storage.

	16. 
	29
	3.10
	Q.
The Criterion-Referenced Test (Montana CRT) 2012–13 Technical Report provided the following numbers for students requiring Large Print and/or Braille test forms. Please validate that we can use these numbers as a guide to estimate the number of printed accommodations necessary.

A.
Yes
Grade 3

Grade 4

Grade 5

Grade 6

Grade 7

Grade 8

Grade 10

MATAccom26 (Braille)

3

0

1

2

1

0

0

MATAccom27

(Large Print)

5

5

2

5

3

3

8



	17. 
	29
	3.10
	Q.
Does OPI plan to reuse any of the forms produced from one year to the other, especially for Braille and Large Print?

A.
Smarter Balanced will develop a paper/pencil form for the first three years of the operational assessment.  A single operational form will be developed for each grade and each content area per year.  

	18. 
	32
	Attachment A
	Q
Should vendors include only students in the Public Schools Only table in the calculation of total pricing or should we include the students in the other tables as well?

A.
Please include public schools, private accredited schools, and treatment centers/correctional institutions. 

	19. 
	32-35
	Attachment A
	Q.
Does Montana only expect vendors to provide total prices for each Option or does Montana expect vendors to provide additional detail? If yes, at what level of detail should vendors submit pricing information?
A.    
The contractor’s proposal should include a budget that includes total cost and cost per student as requested in the cost table in section 5.  In addition, the proposal should include as much additional detail as needed to support and justify the costs provided in the table.

	20. 
	4
	N/A
	Q.
Please confirm or correct the Intended Date of Contract Award.  The current date of August 15, 2014 precedes the RFP Response due date by 5 calendar days.
A.
The intended contract award date is tentatively September 15, 2014.

	21. 
	21, 28
	3.4, 3.10
	Q.
The chart in section 3.4, page 21 includes a footnote that mentions automated scoring, but the Cost Option section (3.10 on pg. 28) does not include an automated scoring cost option. Should a proposal include a cost option for automated scoring?

A.
If the contractor is proposing the use of automated scoring to enhance the efficiency and accuracy of scoring, the contractor’s response should include a description of the proposed uses of automated scoring and a cost option for automated scoring.

	22. 
	25
	3.7.1
	Q.
Does the state expect the vendor to redesign the supplemental reports each year?

A.
At this point, we do not expect the need for supplemental reports in the early years of the operational administration. We can review this periodically.  

	23. 
	25
	3.7.1
	Q.
Does the state have a set of specific deliverables that will be required for supplemental reports? 
A.
At this point, we do not expect the need for supplemental reports in the early years of the operational administration. We can review this periodically.  


	24. 
	26
	3.8
	Q.
Does the state expect the vendor to provide validation of Smarter Balanced’s analysis? Is the state looking for consultation on using the analysis that is provided by Smarter Balanced?

A.
Consultation with the TAC will help determine if there is a need for additional validation, particularly validation for uses of the assessment results at the state level.

	25. 
	28-31
	3.10
	Q.
How long does the state require the vendor to store materials after testing?

A.
Test booklets for a year and Student answer booklets, up to 7 years.  

	26. 
	29
	3.10
	Q.
Please provide the following information
A.  

Number of schools testing with paper and pencil testing (P/P)

Unknown, but anticipate fewer than 25.

Enrollment of students for P/P 
        Under 100
Number of Braille and Number of large print
       Question 16 includes a table of the number of Braille and LP for the entire Montana school population.  It is anticipated that the numbers would be no higher and probably lower for the student population taking the P/P
Number of manuals:  
     Estimate 100



	27. 
	29
	3.10
	Q.     
Is the state requesting separate test booklets and answer booklets, as indicated in the Overview, or an integrated solution, as indicated in the second paragraph on this page? 

A.  
Please see the answer for Question 15.

	28. 
	35
	Attach A
	Q.
Please identify the student group listed on this page, as there is no header for this chart.

A.
Demographic information for the Treatment Centers. 

	29. 
	29-40
	4.2.5-4.2.7
	Q.
These do not appear to be questions that we can answer, yet, they are included in a section that requires a response. They seem to be more statements or items for the reviewer to score based on the rest of our proposal response. Could the state clarify if the vendor needs to respond to these sections?

A. 
The vendor does not need to respond to these sections.  


	30. 
	41
	5
	Q.
The state has identified $2.4m budget for year one. Please identify which option (1-5 on page 42) that figure represents.

A.  
No year can exceed the $2.4 M budget; scoring will be based on option 1. Start up costs for early years and maintaining the system costs after the initial years were taken into consideration when determining the costs.   

	31. 
	41
	5
	Q.
There is no line item for per student pricing on page 42.  Does the state wish vendors to add another line item or will the state amend the pricing sheet in Section 5?

A.
The contractor’s proposal should include a budget that includes total cost and cost per student as requested in the cost table in section 5.  In addition, the proposal should include as much additional detail as needed to support and justify the costs provided in the table.  

	32. 
	11
	3.0
	Q.
The RFP states, “Option 3: Grades 3-8:  Summative; Grades 3-8 and 11:  Formative and Interim”.  Is this intended to be formative and interim at grades 3-8?
A.
No, it is correct as stated.  

	33. 
	13
	Background
	Q.
The RFP states, “Contractor and OPI provide training at OPI Assessment Conference” For costing purposes, is this training 1-day? For costing purposes, how many participants should contractor expect to attend?

A.
Current vendors send at least two contractor participants and sometimes more. 

	34. 
	37
	Attachment  B
	Q.
The RFP states, “The contractor must commit to receiving certification of their test delivery system from SB.

See the following for additional information on the Smarter Balanced certification process and requirements: 

http://www.smarterapp.org/ documents/ Smarter_Balanced_Applications_ Deployment_and_Technology_ Certification.pdf

If SB will no longer be certifying the test delivery system of contractors, how does the state envision the contractor demonstrating to the state that the delivery system meets the state’s needs? This is referenced in the recently released Smarter Balanced document detailing Implementation Readiness “

 “Release 1.1 Note: The previous version of this document was titled, “Smarter Balanced Applications Deployment and Technology Certification Overview.” It has been retitled to emphasize that Smarter Balanced will not be certifying deployments but rather supporting vendors’ and states’ self-assessment of readiness…”

A.
Smarter Balanced has replaced the “Certification” process with an “Implementation Readiness” process that will enable the contractor to demonstrate to OPI their readiness to administer the Smarter Balanced assessments according to specifications.  OPI expects the contractor to be able to meet this requirement.


	35. 
	20
	3.3.2
	Q.
The RFP states, “The contractor will prepare administration manuals to support the administration of the computer-adaptive assessment”. 

a. Is it the state’s desire to utilize the Smarter Balanced provided test administration manual and parse it out

for different audiences? 

If not, could you please describe how the Smarter Balanced TAM and TCM are intended to be integrated into the solution?

A. OPI would like the contractor to collaborate in the review of the manuals and make suggestions on how to streamline them and how, if possible, to designate different audiences. 

	36. 
	25
	3.7
	Q.
The RFP states, “The contractor will be responsible for producing hard copies of individual student-level reports produced by Smarter Balanced for delivery to individual schools”

What does the state envision as a template for the hard copy student-level reports?

A.
The Smarter Balanced template. 

	37. 
	25
	3.7.1
	Q.
The RFP states, “Prior to the reporting results for the initial year of testing, the contractor will work with the state to identify and design reports needed to supplement those available through the Smarter Balanced reporting system.

As part of the project planning for each subsequent year, the contractor and state will meet to review existing reports and identify and produce a plan to make changes, if any, needed to reports for the upcoming year.

The contractor will produce in electronic format all supplemental reports agreed upon by the contractor and OPI

Can the state provide additional information about the type of custom reports the state might expect?

A. 
At this point, we do not expect the need for supplemental reports in the early years of the operational administration. We can review this periodically.



	38. 
	25
	3.7.2
	Q.
The RFP states, “Prior to reporting results for the initial year of testing, the contractor and state will determine what, if any, state-specific, interpretive materials are needed to supplement the materials produced by Smarter Balanced.  This may include interpretive materials designed for use by system administrators, teachers, parents and students, or the general public.”

Can the state provide additional information about the type of custom interpretive materials the state might expect?

A.
It is expected, as with the Smarter manuals, that the interpretive materials will be reviewed collaboratively by the contractor and OPI to determine possible ways to streamline the information and designate different audiences.  

	39. 
	28
	3.9.11
	Q.
The RFP states, “If a proprietary system is proposed, the offeror shall describe how the functionality of their test delivery system for the Interim Assessment is different from the Smarter Balanced CAT delivery system”

What is the expectation of timing with regards to the interim CAT delivery date?

A. The fixed forms of the interim assessment will be available from Smarter Balanced in Fall 2014, while adaptive versions will become available once the item counts are adequate.



	40. 
	28
	3.9.2
	Q.
The RFP states, “Offerors will provide a description of Digital Library management, including staffing, priority Help Desk responsibilities, integration of service into other Help Desk responsibilities, and quality assurance.

Offerors will provide cost estimates for Digital Library Help Desk services as part of contractor’s other Help Desk responsibilities”

Can the state provide clarification on the expectation of support with regard to Help Desk beyond Tier 1 services?

A.
Contractor will provide tiers 1 and 2 support services.  Smarter will provide tier 3.  

	41. 
	28
	3.10
	Q.
The RFP states, “Although virtually all systems and schools will administer the Smarter Balanced tests by computer, as designed, a small number of school systems may require paper-and-pencil test administration.  At this time, OPI anticipates that some Treatment Centers, State-funded Schools, and program participation will require paper-and-pencil testing” 

a. What percentage of students over and above those enrolled at Treatment Centers or State-funded schools 
will require a paper-and-pencil test?  
b. Would paper-and-pencil testing be used as a type of accommodation for a majority number of schools? 

As an example, could most of the 819 schools have one or two students per grade that might need a paper version of the test?

A. a. Rather than a percent, we continue to expect no more than approximately 100 P/P.

b.  Based on the field test participation, no. 

	42. 
	30
	3.10.7
	Q.
The RFP requests, “A process and procedures to ensure the accurate and timely packaging of orders, including additional materials orders”  Are any paper based testing materials to be packaged by school and shipped to the system?

A.
Only P/P.

	43. 
	31
	3.11
	Q.
The RFP states, :Please enter the total amount to add the formative and interim for grades K-2, 9, 10, and 12 to the cost option table below”

Can the state confirm that Smarter Balanced costing for formative and interim does not already include all grades for K-12?

A. The contractor should provide costs needed to support the use of formative and interim assessments at the additional grades.

	44. 
	35
	Attachment  A
	Q.
The table at the top of this page does not have a header.  Are these the enrollment estimates for the State-funded Schools?

A.
Yes, formatting caused the two tables to be on separate pages.  

	45. 
	11
	3.0.1
	Q.
Does the OPI intent to secure the usage of the SBAC item bank, or is the winning vendor responsible for this activity?

A.
The state will pay Smarter directly for the rights to administer the Smarter Balanced assess.  The contractor will be responsible for interacting with Smarter for all activities for accessing all the material and administering the test and reporting the results.


	46. 
	20
	3.4
	Q.
Is the OPI interested in receiving bids that propose the use of artificial intelligence (AI) scoring for the summative assessment if it can demonstrate results comparable to human scoring?

A.
Yes, however, OPI would prefer both options be included. 

	47. 
	20
	3.4
	Q.
Is the OPI interested in receiving bids that propose the use of artificial intelligence (AI) scoring for the summative assessment if it can demonstrate results comparable to human scoring?

A.
Yes, however, OPI would prefer both options be included.

	48. 
	42
	5
	Q.
Is the OPI responsible for the cost of licensing the SBAC content?

A.
The state will pay Smarter directly for the rights to administer the Smarter Balanced assess.  The contractor will be responsible for interacting with Smarter for all activities for accessing all the material and administering the test and reporting the results.
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